
UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC 
AND 

Dist:r. 
GENERAL 

SOCIAL COUNCIL E/ICEF/SR.ll3 
25 September 1953 
E!i9fiESH 

CONTEMS 

53-25634 

~;~oi,,:;: OBIGINAL: ... 'l!~RENCH 

ocr i.tJ4 ·1 J95a 
r' 

c~. 
UNITED NATIONS D~ATIONAL CHIIl>.REN'B EMERGENcY FUl'ID 

EXECUTIVE BOARD ' 

SUMMARY mi:cam ·a, T1m: HO'NDlUID ANI> THIR'.L'EEml MEETING 

Held. ~t.~eadquar·tere.1 New York 
on Wednesday, 9 S9ptember 1953, a~ 10.30 a.m. 

WHO/GNICEF~ase:l.sted illat$rnal and child liealth prograunes in fifteen 
countries: progress· report submitted by the Director-General of the 
World Health 9rgs.nizat1·on (E/ICEF/235)(continued) 

•. •·t 

UNICEF participation in Fogrammes for h.andicapped children: statement 
submit~ed by the International Society. for the Welfare of Cripples 
{E/I~&F/N00/8) , 

Report of the~ UNIC!ilFftlHo joint Caumittee on.Health Pol:l,cy (E/ICJEF/228) 
' . . 

Stateme:1t by t:OO re:t>J.•eeentative at the United Nations FIIIPd and 
Agriculture C:::-ganizetion (FAO) · · · · 



E/ICEF/SR.U3 . 
Er.glish 
Page 2 

PRESENT: 
Chai:.nl!9n: 
Members: 

Mr. Lnmr 
Mr.CARASALES 
!l.r. BRENNAN 
M.r.FENAUX 
Mr. de PAIVA LEITE 
Mr. TEPLOV 

Mrs. SINCLAIR 

Mr. TSAO 
Mr. RYBA.."'l 

Mr. CONCHA·ElUUQUEZ 
Mr. GORSE 

Mr •. ROUSSOS 
Mr. BANERJEE 
Mr. UMARIA 
Mrs. · HARMAN· 

Mr. ROBERTI 
Mr. GUNDRSEN 
Mr. HAMDAN! 

Mr. HOLGUIN 
Mr. REYES 

Mr. DEVAKUL 
Mr.svmiN 
Mr. BARNES 

Miss ELiot' 
Mr. BRACCO · 

Mr. KOS 

· Svitzerlaod 
Argentina 
Australia 

·· Belgium 
Brazil 
Byelorussian So~et Socialist Republic 
Canada 
China · 
Czechoslovakia 
Ecuador 
France 
Greece 
India . 
Iraq 
Is:rael . 

. \ 
·rt'ly 

I 

No~ 

Poklstan 
Peril 

\ · 

Philippines 
Tbapand 
U~ibn ot Soviet Socialist Republics 
Un;L ted Kingdom of Great Britain and 

rorthern Ire~and 
Un~ ted State a of · America 
u~ 

Yugqslavia 
! 

Representatives of' .spc;:cial.ized agencies: · 
'::.,_ · Miss SCCY!'T ) 

Mre. S!SMANIDISl Dr. 'V~.>+. VEEN Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) 
Dra WORK 

Dr. CO!GNY ) 
Mr. GRANT ~ 
Dr. SU'ITER 
Dr. VERHOESTRATE 

World Health Organization (WHO) 



PRESENT: (continued) 

E/ICEF/SR.ll3 
English 
Page 3 

!!!P,resentati vea of noe-so~lSlJm~B:els&ti$?911 
Categorx A: 

Mrs • m:1mSFOP.D !POX 

. Category B: 

Mr. FRASER. 
Miss aurmuE 
Mr.LONGARZO 

Mr. ACTON 

Mise WALSER 

United NatiODS Becretar:!.at ·: 
Miss KAHAN ) 
Mr. Ll'l'TERIA) 

UNICEF Administration: 
Mr. PATE 

Mr. HEYWAP.D 

Dr. ~CIC 
Dr. YUAN 
Mr. DAVEE 

Mr. EGGER 

Mr. KEENY 
Mr. CRARNCM 

World FederatloD · ·ot ·United Nations · 
A.a.ocio.ti~ 

J'ft.a41. li»"ld Calait.tee for -Ccmoultation 
ID~eraaticmal AlJ1ance of Women ·-
1Qte1~t!ooal Conference of Catholic 
~t:l. ·:' n 

Intematio."l8l. Society for the Welf'are 
ot Cripples · 

Women's Interaational League for Peace 
and_ Freedom · · 

Department of Soaial Affairs 

Executive Director . 
Deputy Director~ 

WHO ' .C~ief l.fedi~ Adviser. to UNICEF 
WBQ Assistant ~cal. Adviser to UNICEF 

-· I 
Dire~tor 1 Latin A~nerica Regional. , Of.fice 

. \_ . 
Director, Atriea, Europe e.lld Et;t.atern 

· Mediterrac~an R~orial ortice 
· Director, Asia Res~onal Office 
SecretarY of the B~rd 

,·, ' .. ; 



CEF/SP..ll3 
11sh 
e 4 

·~O/UNICEF-ASSISTED MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH PRCGRA!tH:S IN FIFI'EEN COUNTRIES: 
OGRESS REPORT SUBMITrED BY THE D:rnEOI''OR~'ERAL OF THE WORLD HEALTH ORGANIZATIO~ 

E/ICEF/235 )(continued) · · 

'!be CHAIRMAN invited the Board to discuss the report submitted at the 

t
revious meeting by the Director-General of the W. orld Health Organization 
oncerning the progress of maternal and child health progran:mes in fifteen 
ountriee. · 

Miss ELior (United. States of .Amerie;a) considered tha report, which she 
studied carefull;y, to be an extremely useful document both for UNICEF and 

or the count1~es which were developing their maternal and child health centres. 
t was an important part of UNICEF activitie3. Th6 oarrying out of progrBDI!Ies 

t that type was a long-term project, the immediate re~ults of vhich it was 
' ' 

lifficult to estimate. The important thing was not so ~ch to increase the 
umber of services provided as to improve their qooJ.i ty • . 

T'ne establishment and improvement of maternal :;.md ch~d health centres was 
f great importance to the community. As such centres developed, the1 could 
ecome community education centres where families. would be told of the dangers of 
ack of sanitation and 1nstrueted · upon what they ahould do to \guard against those 

gere. The centres might, at a more advanced stage of development, instil 
nto mothers an idea of the psychological influence which sanitary condi tiona 
ould have on their chilc1ren. She drew the particular attentio~ of the Board 
o certain paragraphs of the report, especially paragraph 22 on the role of MCH ., 

'· rogram:nes in broadening community services 1 paragraph 23 and the following on 
he role of voluntary agencies, paragraph 30 on aid to boepitals ~d hospital 
raining s choole, e.nd above a.ll paragraphs 31 and the f'ollowicg on ,: measures to 

I 

d MCH centres. Of particular significance in that connexio~' was the part 
vernmenta could play by gi vtng directions, co-ordinatins the ac~i vi ties. of 

I 
ntres, and train!Dg persocnel. She drew attention also to par~rapbs 6o &ld 

,.,......v-.,.a.ng coneerning the e~oyment of national persoru:ael and thp possibilities 
. . 

fi r .turther. UNIC£l. .tuJ.si..tJtance- tn--tbe- t'.te.ld o£ .maternal and .chU4 health. 



E/ICEJ'/SR.ll3 
English 
I'age 5 

Mr. CARASA:rBS (Argentina) retgrred to Mf'agra}il 20 of the repor-t, in 
which it wae ~ated thllt in Latin Azoo~·iee. YEO had pranoted the integrat!on ot 
maternal and child health work .tn tbe senerctl tl& .. h centree and tbo uee fer 
znaterne.l and .child care ot P'rsOimSl who w~ coaoel'ned with all the basic 
activities of the health centre. 

He considered that to be the t.Gt tr.:rtllo4,' t~ Al·genti:ca's experience in 
- uiider-dev&lO}l84 rural aree.s vae that any ver,v speciaJJ,zed centre gradually 

b~ceme. a general health centre if one d.id nat e.lre.i.q exiGt., . . 

Mrs. SINCLA~ (Canada) expretsed eatiatan1on at th~ Q~li·ty, ot t~ 
report a~ subscribed .to' th~ view whieh the Unitea Statlls reproeentat:lve had 
expressed in that eonnexion, 

She Wi&hed, however 1 to knOW Yhotber the f1aures in table 6 on !J.'lg8 24 
were etill tentative estimates or wb.ethsr S}:acific pl.azw had been adopted. 
With ~gard ... footnote 1 to Annex I on pago 78, ehe inquired wiult was the 
})I'Oportion ot the amru.,,..tent 8lld to .be spa11t. before 1954. and wl:l.ethar the 

e~tenditure voul4 ba~~ covered by WHO's, regular budget. 

Dr. ~~_(World Boalth O:rgantzation) said that the fig-.1res in 
table 6 ,...~ ;./oposcd ·ob.joct1qe. He vets I orr::( he oould oot reply 
1~ to the second.q\lestion but ha wou.ld give the exact figures lst~r. 

Mr. :Bru!NNAN {All,D'tr.lla) ~ · c<C~tD&nding the quality .·or- ·the-. report, 

obftned, .in comJel;ion with the !urvey of reeul.,ts achieved in terms ot. the 

e.ssie;tance }:I'OVided, that ~t was difficult to achieve :t1i1D'£diate results in. that 
:perlicular field. It appea~ed trom the figures in J:6ragrB.fh 26 . that the number 
of people aerved by all the MCU ccatres in Bl..ll'm8.1 InC.ia, Ind~n.aeia1 l?ald.stan end 

the Philippines amounted to sane 28 million. That w~s an encoure.g:!.ng figure 
despite the tact tba·t it repreeentad only a small ferceiitage of t~e ta~al 
population of those countries. 'r.1e figures pertaining to personnel and 

iJ 



E/ICEF/SR.l13 
E:1c;lit:h 
Page 6 

c~rlinements were also sat:i.sfactary. Attandance at the centres seemed ratr.:.e'!· 
low, however, and he wmtld like to hear what the WHO representative had to say 
on that point. He wondered whether the situation could not be imp!'CIVed and, 
in that connexion, he referred to the figures in table 2 on page 12. 

Dr. VEI.UIOESTRATE {World Health Organization) said that the statistical 
data in paragraph 26 had been included in the report in order to give an exact 
idea of the Jitesent situation. The desired degree of perfection had obviously 
not yet been achieved: pre-natal care bad not been sufficiently developed and 
eo far the centres had treated only a very smell percentage of older children 
end of babies. The domiciliary care was aleo very limited. There was no doubt, 
however-, that UNICEF and WHO aesietence would help to improve the eituation. 

Miss KAHN (Department of Social Affaire), commenting on various points 
in the report, agreed with the statement in paragtaph 22 concarnlng the 
important role MCH programmes co\Ud play in cantni.Ulity developnent. She 
emphasized the importance of traicl_ng auxiliary personnel and the need for an 

. . 
adequate qualified staff to supel""tise . the work of that au.."Ciliary persor..nel. 
She readily subscribed to the suggestions in paregra}i1s 54 to 56, particularly 
with regard to the assignment of consultants for a s}:ecific period to assist . . 

the maternal and child health teams in nutrition problems. A central governmental 
service should be established in each country to promote the establishment of 
centres, to co-ordinate their activities and to encourage them in their work. 
The service should not be unduly rigid but should 'be adopted to the conditions 
prevailing in the country. Hotne visiting service&.' should be develop3d1 

p:~.rticulerl.y in rural e.reas, and U1::ICEF should encourage governments to request 
the services of supplementary }:ersonncl in the. centree, eo that more people 
might be served. 



E/ICEF /SR.ll3 
English 
Page 7 

With regard to the training of pereonnel, she felt that many countries 
could useful.ly base themselvaa upon the methods used in Pakistan (JBges 35 aDd 36) 
She was plee.Eed to note that in ·Brazil the Goveroment had. been so succe~:sful . 
in promoting the training of a~ilim.·y pcrs~nnal that many at them were taking 
advanced courses to improve their t1·aining. 

In conclusion, she felt that Ul:UCE:F might c.oncentrate on the following 
activities: it should enoQ1Jl1 ae;e govermentD both to develop their h-::me visiting 
services and to examine the vcrk doa:e 1n some centres so ae to formulate 
principles upon whicb tuture Jn'"ogi"smmes might be ba.aed. 

, Mr. de PAIVA LErB (~azU) thought .that it we.e ~ealilrtic to evaluate 
on the basis of figures ani s-rce~e tbe results achieved in fields such as 
those cov.ered by UNICEF 1 PL1"t1oularl7 in t.he eerly stages of the work. In the 
north-east region of Brazil J*rlicul.ar~ 1 maternal and ohild welfare work had only 
recently been initiated and it would be idle to expect appreciable resul~s in 
the first few years. He agreed with Hiss Kahn that collaboration between the 
maternal and child wel.f'!lre cen·trea and social eentres in general was im,porte.nt. 
In the north-eastern region of Drazill with Which he was very familiar·, he hM 
observed that the maternal .and child welfare centres . exercised an influence te:r 
exceeding the scope of their activities: in some centres mothers • aeeociations 
h~ been formed to deal 'lith heal·;m questiops affecting the whole community. 

He no~ed that the report revealed a certain anxiety pn the subJect of the 
employment of personnel. Re himself thought . that there w.ould always be an 
adequate number ~ posts open to trained peJ.'eonnel and that, even it sane of 

thom later abandoned their profession, their training would nat have been in 
vain, for they would continue to exercise an influence on the coomunitie11 where 
they lived. 

In conclusion, he thank.ed UNICEF aDd WHO for tlle outete.nding ~ervices which 
those two organizations had rendered, not ~ in Brazil but in all countries 
of Latin America. 



E/ICZF/SP..ll) 
English 
Page 8 

Dr,. VERHOES'l'RA!'E (Wo~ld Health Orgnpization) was fully conscious of 
the value ni Brazil's efforts in the .field of mterna.l e.nd child -vrelfare. He 
pointed out 1 ho·wever, in coun.exion with· emp1oyaent of trained personnel, that . 
the Governn:ent ahould create penr.anent poat,s and, partie.ula.rly in the case of . 
personnel in rural areas, should offer S&J.arie.~ that were._auf.ficient for their 
maintenance in the country. 

UNICEF PARTICIPATIOO IN PROG.IW~S FOR HANDICAPPED CHIU>REM: STATEMENT 
SUBMITl'ED BY THE INTERNATl9NAL S~IETY FOR THE WElFARE OF CRIPPLES . (E/ICEF/NG0.8) 

~. ACTON (Internt\tiot;al Society for the Weltare of Cripples) submitted 
to the Executive Board a stateUJent in which the International Society for the 
Welfare of Cripple a expressed its gratitude to UNICEF on ~bal.t ot all ~oncerned 
with ~he . welfare ?f cripples and put forward some recGmmendations with regard 
to an extension of the Fund Is WOl~k i£1 that field (E/ICEF/NG0.8). 

' ' 

The first of those recommendations was that the Fund Ghould continue to 
provide assistance to projects for tha rehabilitation ot he~icapped children, 
in co-operation with the United ~tioms o.na. the . World Health _.Qr.ganization, 
employing selection criteria. or tho tYIJe wh~ch had been' used in the past. In 
that connexion, he stressed that too eota'Jll~e:at of an ~dequate rehabilitation 
service depended on local interel<'lt end lceadkrchip aa well as coinpetetrt persochel 
and adequate !'acilitiea. When thoae oeces~ities had. been oecured or at lea:st 

. I . . 
brought within sight, relatively ~11 gr~t2 or aid were frequently sufficient 
to bring an etfecti ve programme into operation·. · There were many exsmples to 
prove that the· communi t.Y rarely. re:!\laed e~port to an und.ertaking whose vaJ.ue 

• . i 

had been demonstrated. UNICEF'a assistan¢e wua in accordance vitQ those 
principles and it was doing much, in ccmb~nstion with the United Nations 
Division ot: Social Welfare, · the World Health orga.nization, ILO, UNESCO e.nd . 
certain non-governmental organizations, to stimulate and supp<)rt ~the develOpment 
of p~ogrammes for' the benefit of handicapped children. -

I . . . . 
The second recommendation o~ the Intern&~onal Society .for the Wel.fare of 

Cripples was that UNICEF should ¢ndeavour, wit~in the framework of. its programme 
for maternal and child welfare, f~ develop serv}ces for diagnosis, treatment and 



E/ICEF/SR.ll3 
English 
Page 9 

social rehabili ta.tion of lw.udica.:pped children. He was plee.&ecl to note that 
that recommendation wea in harmony with vie~s expressed by repr~sentatives 
of the Division of Social Welfare and ~he World Health Oreanization concerning 
health and welfare services as a peu~t o~ community ·orge.nizetion programmes. 
I-t:. wa.a t.oo often bel1eved that, :Ln c·rd.er to assist handicapped children, e. 

comprehcnsi ve and specialized :rell8b1li tat ion Gervice must be este.blished. 
That was of course to be desired r!hen it wes possible, but a beginning might 
be made in the meantime on some pro~s ot service for the benefit of 
handicapped children, usi.Qg exiatiz:t; Jll9d1oal, health and \relfe.re services, 
together with training facilities with1~ the framework ot ot;her programmes 
affecting the family and tbe ~ ty ," AS:eists.nce in that matter might 
well be provided in connexion wit;h UNICEF/WHO•a.ssisted maternal child health 
and welfare.projects. 

The International Society for the Welfare of Cripple~had been led to 
submit its third recommendation • cqncet"ning the preparation. of a. report on 
the work of UNICEF for the development of services for crippled children -
beca,lse it knew tl'l..et in many countries, particularly in thotte wbich had been 
ardent supporters of UNICEF, there were extremely t.rell·developed and effective 
bodies of public opinion concern•d particularly with pro.grall~DeS for 
handicapped children to 'frhom ft .·vould be most helpful to know the results 
obtained hitherto by the Fund in the.t field of action. Almost every phase 
of UNICEF• s work was important in the prGvention of crippling and in the 
development of services to aaaist handicapped children and too much stress 
could not be laid on the importance of obtaining wide support for those 
activities. 

The representativos of the United C~ates, Canada, ·wo and the Division of 
Social Welfare had pointed/out t~1at vclotery organizations could play an 
important part in the develQpment of matsr-ual e.nd child welfare services. He, 
in his turn wished to emphasize that that \~s especially true in the case of 
handicapped children, where. community interest and support was so vital. It 
had been tbe pleasure of the International Society for the Welfare ot Cripples 
and several of its affiliated national organs to co-operate in UNICEF activities 
and they wished to assure the Board of their continUing desire to collaborate 
in every way possible. 



EVICEF/SR.ll3 
E!oglish 
P~ge 10 

J:l.ir. PATE (Executive Director) sal d that UNJ:CEli' had always been, and 
would continue to be, deeply concerned with the work of reha.bilitation of 
handicapped children, as w~s shown by the in~reased allocations for that work. 

Mr. RoUSSOS (Gr eece) ·congratulated the International Society for tb.e 
Welfe.re of Cripples on its val1ta.bl.e cont:ribut:ton to the Work of UNICEF; his 
delegation thot~ht that the Society's recommendations deserved the full 
consideration of the ixecut i ve Board. 

Miss ELIOT (United States of America) associated herself with the 
tribute .. paid by the representative of Greece. It was right that the treatment 

. . 

and rehab'ilitation of handice.pped chilclren should occupy an increa.3ingly 
. . 

important place in long-range activities tor child welfare. 

. .' ~ 

REPORT. OF THE ~ICEF/WHO JOU,JT COtvt.1ITI'EE ON HEALTH POLICY (E/ICEF.228) 

Miss 'ELIOT (United· States of fJnerica) presented the report of the 
sixth session of the UNICEF/WHO Joint Committee on Health Policy. 

At the opening of the session, the Director-General of HHO had stressed 
the cordial relations existing between WHO and UNICEF; thoae cordial relations 
had been clearly manifested throughout the session. 

The Committee had been of' the opinion that the presente.tion of reports on 
tne complet'ion or progre·ss of' the projects e.pproved by it was of great value: 
those reports laid particular stress on the problemG which remained to be 
solved if progress was to be achieved. 

Proceeding to a detailed ~nalysis of the report, she stressed that two of 
the principal difficulties to be overcome in order to carry out successfully the 
BCG vaccination campaigns lay in the recruitment of an international staff and 
the recruitment of nations.l s'taff • . 

Referring to paragraph 39, · s'he pointed out that ·the measures envisaged in 
the programme to combat leprosy were ~inly directed towards the treatment of 
patients, but that nevertheless they w~~ bound to contribute to the protection 
of children, who ran the greatest :risk of .. contamination. 

\\ 



. E/I9EF:/SR4113 
English · · 
Page 1.1 

Wit~ :-eg&.rd to the terms of ~fe!'ence of· t~ j9i~~ . e~ttee ~ she hoped the . 
Board vould ap:pro.,e the . 1:-ee~tida·~ians · in · pangr~~s· 42·i 4' ~d 44 ·or the report. . . ~ . . . ~ . . . . 

' ; ' : ·.·. 

Dr • . Stf.r.il'ER .. (WHO) stre seed .. tbe : value of epideado lagiaa ~ stUdies as a · 
p:reliminary to. ti!lGB c:.~igns (p&ra€nph 7) and the d~sire.~iU.ty of i"Ormina specie! 
·teams ··. t6 es~iM:. i;t.' t~~ results Ot the ce..tnpeigr..s (parsgrapb ~),. 

. ' ' . 
. . . • . . . r .· . : r:r~ uescio.-:.1 of tbe Joint COIItn!ttee bad taken place in s~. atmosphere which 

· was .lllOst f'i:YOl!l'able to the working out of ·a hanioniaus prosra• oi:_ ae~ion; he, 
· u~te.:Mt.a · ·Eli:ot, ho~d· tbat -the Board to~ld e.pprC'Ie the ~ee~ndati,ons ~lating 

. ~ . , : . "' ~ r • . • . . . . ~. . . . . 

· tO the· terms o: referenee cit the Joint Committee~ 

Hz·~ . ·:~',; PAllA LEITE .(&.-azil) state~ tbat the Bnaziltan. delegation gave 
. .. . . . . \ . . . . .. ·. . . . . 

· it~ ·VhQltl'leaz-ted appro.•l tO tbe suggestions in paragrap~ 24 ~nd 25 COnc"rning . .. ,\ . . 

e.ssist!SJlce, to hospitals. ·· 
. . · With ·riSL"'"d ·to ·f.mv±ronmental sanitation (pa~p~ti 19 ·to 22), Br&~il bad 

.appr&:!ved . tbe :executiott-.of a three•)"lai" progrmlt!t:e· fer the c~et~ttcm 'and .. 
· t 'iacncin8 ·of a piped 1-18ter · system to ~upp ~Y' 700 sma 11 local1 t~ee of, not . JfOl:e tb&n . 

. 5~000 - inhribit&nts ·with drinking -.-atero . ~ federal tkwerhilent c.oUld ~o:unt on tbe 

. t .ull, . eo..ope:oatiOn .ot the states in e~ng OUt the. woik', vbicb would CO$t at leae1 
· · 1.20~ :~Uj,~ dOlloat'so . · Tbat pi~ ·wa the j6~t work .of sanituY e]tpe~ts, 

. . . . ~ - . 

engineer.a and econo11i1ots, Who bad· based themseive.s on the principles set out by 

the Joint Comali ttee in !)e.ragrapb· 21 of' tbe rep~. . . T.a&t ide.nti ty of att1 tude 
; .. · between. ~ group_ of- international ~xperts and a .~· of' national. experts v~king 

independently suggested that .'it· voul<i'be· dedrabie for c.n inte~ti~l· . ~-
· . . ' . · . organization such es WICEF ·to extend 'ita a.sriistance to sanitsation P.zooject~, which . . ~ . ' : 

·. . 
... .... 

. -· ROOSSOS (Greece) thOU3ht· tb&t ·t!:ie ·Joint ca.Dittee~:s recmandations, 
Wi~h vete ;of a pncticw.l nature, e~ld ·be ··w~ed; .. it Vould ''be. the 

• h • • • 

'~eponsibiUty ot the AdMinistration to put :them into operation bearing in mind 
tbe particular ciJ'cumstanees of' e~!l country. 



E}Ic:EF /SR ., 113 
English 
Page l2 

. . 

Mrso HARMAN (Israel) drew tb.e Boe.rd~e attentipn to the eeetion dealing 
witb tbe hygienic co~trol of milk (paragraphs 29 to 35)o The tr6ining course 
referred to in paragrapjl 32 would be very use~ul to countries carrying cut milk 

conservation progracmeso 
With regard to the principles upon \o:"uiob environmental sanitation might be 

associated with maternal apd child welfmre (p&I"agraph 21) 1 s·ilb•peragrapbe 4, 5 
and 9 should be emphasized. Tbose :progn.mmes might help to turn materncl and 
child welfare centres into true social centres; that being so, it vould be 
preferable for the prcgra~s to form an integral part of maternal and cbild 
welfare {sub-paragraph 5 b)o 

. \ 
Hz:.~ KOS (Yugoslavie); . referrlr.g to p<iiragr~h 191 said t!lat in~stinal 

infections vere the cause of l9o3 per cent ot child deaths in Yugoslavia. For 
the reasons given in that paragraph~ it veuld be 5ppropr~ate for UNICEF to 
partieil)&te in tbe carrying out of sanitation programmes. The State chould play 
an important part in tbe carrying out of those llrogr&mme~; not only vas it the 
responsibility of the S~te to take tbe initiative, but it must also ensure that 
the work ~t undertook l7it'h the temporsl""J assistance cf UNICEF . an.<l WHO vould be 
continued, For toot reason very pSY·tieul&r attention sb6uld be given. to tbe 
p:d.nei:ples outlined in eub~p&?agrapbe 21 41 61 8 and 9 of paragraph 21. 

Mro GORSE (France) stated tb.3t :tbe French del~gation was glad to note 
the ac:tion oi the Joint Committee and tbe close co-operation between WHO and 

,· . 
UNICEF o The · quarters concerned and the governments should attach gr~at importanc 
to·· the Committee as recommendations with regard to the c&mpQigns against 
tuberculosis &nd ·leprosy, milk control, questions of pr1or1typ Qnd eommunity 
ee.~itstion prQblemso 

' With ·reference to pan~phs 42 and 43, the French del~gstion hOped tbr.at t~ 
Executive Boord would ta.ke ~be Joint Committeets suggestions into consideraticno 



E/ICEF/SR.ll3 
EngliE:h 
Page 13 

In reply to a question by Mr. de PAIVA LEITE (Brazil) 1 Dr. SUTTLR (WHO) 
stated that pe.rasra}:h 43 was not meant to imply that sessions Of the Joint 
Committee ehould necasearily be held a~ways in the same place; it wae the 
responsibility of the Directors of the two organizations to decide on each 
occasion, according to the agenda of the seeaion, what would be the most 
suitable place. 

Mr. BRENNAN (Australia) said that, having regard to Dr. Sutter' e 
explanation, the Australian deletation apJl['oved the reccmnendations. in 
}:8ragrapha 42 and 43. 

The CHArnMAN had pleasure il'l stressing ttle tact that a true frienliship 
linked the representatives af WHO and UNICEF 1 which wal! a great help to 
co-operation bet~en the two organizations. 

Reverting to the Joint Committee's report, he said that the }lrogr~ 

Ccmnittee would study most ct the recouaendations in it but it was the 
responsibility af the Board from then on to taka a decision on those that 
concerned the holding of yearly sees tons of the Joint Ccmni tte~ . and the choice 
of place for those sessions. 

The Executive Board of UNICEF unanimouslY awoved the rec9!!1!l'lendations of 

the UNICEF/WO Joint Camnittee ressrding :yearlx sessions af the Joint~~ . 
and the cboice of p1ace for those sessions. 

STATEMENT BY TBE REPRESENTATIVE OF THE UNITED NATIONS FOOD AND AGRICULroRE 
ORGANIZATION (FAO) 

Dr. Van .. VEEN (Food and Agriculture Organ:J_zatton) wished to supplement 
the FAO Report on Progress . of Milk. Conzervation Programme~ 1 subnittE~d to tbe 
Executive Board .on the previous day 1 by giving a general review of the many 

' / . 

fielt. in which FAO, UNICEF1 and ueually WHO, co•op;~rated within .the fta~ork 
of the maternal and child 'Welfare ~oc;rar;me. 



E/ICKF/SR.ll3 
Englieh 
Page 14 

·-----···------------------------------

UlUCEF had been established to cope with en emergency p3riod. FAO and WHO 
had then been called upon to advise UN:CCE1i' on how its resources might be ueed 
to bring the maximum nutritional benefit to the maximum number of children. Milk 
had appeared to be the answer 1 'since that '\oras the food of unquestionable 
importance in the diet of childl·en and supplies of dried milk had at that time 
been available at low coat. It might well be that i~ the later long-range 
:pt"ogrammes the importance of milk had eometimes been somewhat unduly stressed, 
at the expense of other foods of high nutritive velue. 

The success of the emergency fe(ding prograrrae in Europe had given rise 
to the desire to help those countries to continue their feeding programnes. That 
had led to a close and fruitful collaboration between FAO and UNICEF in the 
carrying out of milk conservation profP:ammes. 'Ihe expansion of UNICEF aid to 
other areas had followed a e:OI!l8Wh.at similar pattern, namely 1 the provision by 

UNICEF of dried milk for child-feeding ~rogrammes 1 followed by milk conservation 
work in countries such as those of Cer~tral America, South America, and the 
Middle East vhere 'such an \L."'ld.ertaking was worth while. 

There had been, as the Board lo:lev, a gradual shift in UNICEF activities 
to progratm16s which vould be of lasting value to children. New fields of close 
co-operation had thus been opened between UNICEF 1 FAO and WHO. There had been 
close · co-operation betveen FAO ar.d UNICEF in school feeding, which had culminated· 
the previous month in a school-feeding seminar sponsored jointly by urn:cEF 
and FAO in Costa Rica. Moreover, FAO intended shortly to publish a report 
on school feeding which would probably Jrove to be of practical use to UNICEF 
and WHO. 

0 '. 

The three organizations also worked together in the prevention of protein 
malnutrition'"in mOthers, infants ani children. At the end of 1950, FAO e.nd WHO 
had made a survey C1f kWashiorkor in Africa: the results of two other surveys 1 

in Central and in South ADErica, ho.d not yet boen published. A lack of good 
quality protein vas the caUEe of that deficiency ·disease. At the mo:nent, 
milk-feeding program.ee were being carried out in the Belgian Congo and 
French Equatorial Africa to cure and prevent l~ashiorkor in those regions. 
Protein malnutrition still offered many probl:ms 1 but it vas already clear that 
the consumption of foods ~~ith a hig..~ protein content was the beet safeguard 
against the disease. UNICEF 1 WHO nnd FAO were therefore much interested in 
supplying first quality protein to mothers, infants and children. 



E/ICEF/SR.ll3 
English 
Page 15 

FAO was also interested in maternal and child health programmes which 
concerned nutrition. It was clear from the report on maternal and child welfare 
that the Board had just discussed that 1 t wo.s not yet known which was the best 
way of dealing with nutrition problems in moternal and child health programmes. 
FAO was interested in the question, because food production, distribution and 
preparation, as also' the study of food habits, came within ita terms of reference. 
~leaning diets did not consist of milk alone; other foods ho.d 1;o be included, 
depending on local food habite o.n4 ap-ieult\arQl pOssibilities. The probl.em of __ . 
how to find the best possible vonntng diets was therefore one th~t difrered from 
country to country. 

During the last year, UNICEP and FAO, together with WHO, had been interested 
in feeding sc:hemes based on loool foods other tha.n milk. FAO intended to make 
a statement on the eubjeot,later on-

FAO had also been co-o-perating closely with WHO and UNICEF on the nutrition 
problems of the Arab refugees. 

As the Board knew, FAO had always show great inter eat in nutri tiori 
education, and a report on that subject which had been published two ~ars 
earlier was still one ot its best sellers. During the last two years FAO had 
become more and more interested in the training of workers. The previous month . 
it bad orgo.nized, together with UBlCEF, a milk trnining course in Costa Ri~O, 
in conjunction with the school-feeding seminar. A similar training course, 
jointly sponsored by FAO and UN!Cl"...F, was to be held in Rome in October and 1 t 
was hoped that a third training eourae would be held in the Fur East in the 
course of 1954. 

The training of auxiliary workers in nutrition had been discussed nt the 
eeeom seBSion· cf the FAo/ft,O Joint Expert COI:Jmittee on Nutrition held in R~ in 
1951. The report it had published was not well known, but it had formed the 
basis of discussions at the Third Regional Nutrition Meeting in South and East 
Asia, held in Indonesia in June 1953, under the joint auspices of WHO and FAO, 
at which much attention had been given to the training of local nutrition worker~; 

I 
the report of the meeting would be available shortly. As a result or that w~rk, 
it was probable that in 1954 WHO and FAO would convene a regional seminar for the 
exchange of information on methods and techniques for the training of auxiliary 
nutrition workers. 

.. Tne meeting roee at 1.10 p.m • 
. 26/9 :o.m. 


